
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Rick O’Farrell, Interim Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk   
    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Rebecca Greally 
Email: 
democraticservices@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622616 
Date: Friday, 6 January 2023 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the CORPORATE SERVICES AND ECONOMIC 
GROWTH OSC to be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, MORPETH, 
NORTHUMBERLAND, NE61 2EF on MONDAY, 16 JANUARY 2023 at 10.00 AM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
Rick O’Farrell 
Interim Chief Executive 
 

 

To Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC members as follows:- 

D Bawn (Chair), J Beynon, L Dunn (Vice-Chair), P Jackson, M Murphy, N Oliver, 
A Wallace, C Taylor, M Robinson and P Ezhilchelvan 

 

Portfolio Holders:- G Sanderson, R Wearmoth 

 

Public Document Pack



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 16 January 2023 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 
 
2.   MINUTES 

 
Minutes of the meetings of the Corporate Services and Economic Growth 
OSC held on 12th December 2022, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 6) 

 
3.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting; 
  

a. Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set out in 
Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in room. Where 
members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an executive function and is 
being considered by a Cabinet Member with a DPI they must notify the 
Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with the matter.  

 
b. Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 

Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of Conduct 
to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if members of the public 
are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain the room. 
  

c. Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being (and is not DPI) 
or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to declare the 
interest and members may only speak on the matter if members of the public 
are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the member must not take part in 
discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room. 
  

d. Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or close 
associate or a body included under the Other Registrable Interests column in 
Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test set out at paragraph 9 of 
Appendix B before deciding whether they may remain in the meeting. 
  

e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 
Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in exercise 
of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange 
for somebody else to deal with it. 
  

NB Any member needing clarification must 
contact monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Members are 
referred to the Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. 
Please refer to the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda 
letter. 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk


 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 16 January 2023 

  
4.   FORWARD PLAN 

 
To note the latest Forward Plan of key decisions.  Any further changes 
made to the Forward Plan will be reported to the Committee.   
 

(Pages 7 
- 10) 

 
5.   STRATEGIC CHANGE BUSINESS PLAN 

 
1.    To present to Cabinet the Strategic Business Case which sets out 

opportunities for service improvement, the proposed programme of 
work and potential financial benefit.  

2. To present the objectives of service transformation set out in the 
Business Case, the timescales, and anticipated benefits (financial 
and non-financial)  

  
Councillor Glen Sanderson, Leader of the Council is requested to attend 
for this item.  
  
 

(Pages 
11 - 68) 

 
6.   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Committee is asked to review and note the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 
the 2022/23 council year. 
 

(Pages 
69 - 74) 

 
7.   URGENT BUSINESS 

 
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

 

 
PART II 

 
It is expected that matters included in this part of the Agenda will be dealt with in private.  

Reports referred to are enclosed for members and officers only, coloured pink and marked 
"Not for Publication". 

  
8.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
The Committee is invited to consider passing the following resolution: 
  
(a)    That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item on the Agenda as it involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
1972 Act, and  

  
(b)    That the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 

public interest in disclosure for the following reasons:- 
 
 
 
  

 



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 16 January 2023 

Agenda Items          Paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A 
  

9                     3 - Contains information relating to business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information)   

   
AND               The public interest in maintaining this exemption 

outweighs the public interest in disclosure because 
disclosure could adversely affect the business 
reputation or confidence in the person/ organisation 
and could adversely affect commercial revenue. 

  
  

9.   TRADING COMPANIES FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
The purpose of the report is to ensure that the Cabinet is informed of the 
current financial position of its trading companies and of any relevant 
issues arising. 
 

(Pages 
75 - 88) 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 16 January 2023 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 
Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  
 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 
 

 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 16 January 2023 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 
 



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 16 January 2023 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 

ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 16 January 2023 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
  
Subject Description 
Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship 
 
 
 
  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 
whom the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 
person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 
which such person is a director* or a body that 
such person has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of*) and the council 
— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not give the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or 
jointly with another) a right to occupy or to 
receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or 
a director* of or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 16 January 2023 

where— 
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has 

a place of business or land in the area of the 
council; and 

(b) either— 
i. the total nominal value of the 

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the councillor, or 
his/ her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

 
b) any body 

 
i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union) 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES AND ECONOMIC GROWTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
At a meeting of the Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held in the Conference Room 1, County Hall, Morpeth, NE61 2EF on Monday, 
12 December 2022 at 10.00 am. 
 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor D. Bawn 
(Chairman in the Chair) 

 
 

COUNCILLORS 
  

Beynon, J. 
Dunn, E. 
Murphy, M. 

Robinson, M. 
Taylor, C. 
 

 
 

CABINET MEMBERS 
  

Ploszaj, W. 
Wearmouth, R. 

Portfolio Holder of Business 
Deputy Leader & Portfolio Holder of 
Corporate Services 

 

 

OFFICERS 
  

 

 

Greally, R. 
 
McMillan, S. 
Nicholson, S. 
Rose, J. 
Teasdale, K. 
Willis, J. 
 

Assistant Democratic Services 
Officer 
Assistant Service Director 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
Interim Director of Regeneration 
Recovery Manager 
Executive Director of Finance  
(Section 151 Officer) 

 
 

28. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

 Apologies were received from Councillors P. Ezhilchelvan, P. Jackson, N. Oliver 
and A. Wallace. 
 
 

29. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 12 December 2022      2 

 

Councillor M. Murphy sought guidance regarding item 6 as she was on the board 
for Advance which is a council-owned company. As the report was a general report 
covering the governance of all council-owned companies it was deemed acceptable 
for Councillor Murphy to remain in the room and discuss the item. 

 
30. MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 10 October 2022, as 
circulated, be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

 
31. FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS 

 
The Forward Plan of forthcoming Key Cabinet decisions was reported to the 
Committee.  (Report enclosed with the signed minutes as Appendix A). 

 
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan of key decisions be noted with the verbal 
amendment. 
 
 

32.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
Councillor Ploszaj introduced the presentation to committee. J. Rose, interim 
director of regenerations, presented the PowerPoint to committee. It outlined the 
role of the regeneration service. The service tried to maintain a steady flow of work 
so there was always projects in the pipeline. External funding was instrumental to 
many projects and during differing economic times that funding varied. It was 
highlighted that investment into the County was not mutually exclusive. The service 
provided the Council with an accountable body for externally funded projects and 
programmes to manage performance and ensure compliance. 

 
There were several areas of investment. Town regeneration investment included 
the Energising Blyth Programme, which consisted of capital investment in 11 
significant projects funded by Towns Fund and Future High Street Fund. It was 
hoped a similar investment would take place in Ashington Town centre however 
Levelling Up Fund was awaited. There were also investments in more rural town 
centres such as Alnwick, Hexham and Berwick. 

 
Community regeneration was important to maintain a strategic relationship with 
Town and Parish Councils. This investment also covered the community chest 
which funded community-based projects. The Cultural investment looked at 
developing new cultural attractions such Ad Gefrin in Wooler and Blyth Cultural 
Hub. Hadrian’s Wall was an international asset in the County and the service was 
looking at unlocking the economic potential of the iconic World Heritage Site. Rural 
Stewardship focused on rural business development and helping businesses 
access funding.  

 
Pathways to work looked at employability pathways in the County. It was important 
that the employability programmes met the needs of the businesses in the area and 
the programmes were tailored to meet the needs. Strategic sites was where the 

Page 2



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 12 December 2022      3 

 

service worked with Advance Northumberland to attract business on to the County’s 
enterprise zones. It also looked at the economic corridor created by the 
Northumberland Line and how to unlock its potential. The strategic transport 
investment focused on programs around the County’s transport. The 
Northumberland Line and walking and cycling infrastructure programmes were 
reliant on external funding. The service also managed the Council’s concessionary 
travel scheme.  

 
The following comments were made in response to members questions:- 

 

• It was confirmed that funding cross-pollinates, and it was hoped that 
investment into one area such as a town centre would ripple out to local 
communities. The service tried to package projects together to get the 
optimum funding for that area.  

• The definition of cultural investment was highlighted as important as only 
certain projects would receive external funding.  

• Investments had to resonate with the area it was important that they married 
into the assets that were already available. The service recognized where 
the market was failing and where investment could be used effectively.  

• It was acknowledged that it was challenging to receive funding for existing 
businesses. Members were advised that Advance Northumberland worked 
with existing businesses and would be the first port of call. It was also 
highlighted that in exceptional circumstances the Council would help 
businesses with rate relief but a stringent criteria would have to be met. 
There was also the potential for external funding dependent on the business 
and its circumstances. 

• It was acknowledged that accessing external funding could be complex. The 
service was trying to build capacity for this within communities and Town & 
Parish councils to help more people access external funding. 

• The Community Chest would be more widely advertised to ensure more 
people were aware of the funding and more applications would be received.  

• It was confirmed that a Bus Improvement Plan was taking place. The 
package and funding had been confirmed from Government. The plans for 
how the funding was going to be used had been submitted and the service 
was awaiting confirmation of this plan from the Government. It was hoped 
the improvement in public transport would help the investments in Town 
Centres ripple out to the wider community.  

• There was a North of Tyne shared prosperity fund, which was a pilot 
programme where all major businesses had been encouraged to upskill their 
workers, which had received positive feedback. However it was 
acknowledged that the County had a lot of microbusinesses who could 
access funding through alternative avenues. 

 
   

RESOLVED that Committee noted the presentation. 
 

 

 

 

33. BUDGET 2023-23 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2023-27 

Page 3



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 12 December 2022      4 

 

 
Councillor R. Wearmouth, Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Services introduced the report which gave an update on the position of 
the Council’s budget. The Government had not disclosed any further information 
regarding the budget but it was expected to be delivered 21st December, therefore 
the information in the report was based on assumptions. 
 
J. Willis continued to present the report to committee. It was acknowledged that 
details regarding grants may not be received on the 21st as often they are given a 
couple of weeks after the statement. The limits for things such as Council Tax 
would be outlined in the statement. It was confirmed that the forecast was not 
looking at worst case scenario. 
 
The committee welcomed the report and looked forward to more information in the 
New Year. It was suggested that setting the budget for the coming year could have 
been a defining mark of the administration. 
 
RESOLVED that the information in the report be noted.  

 
 
34. COUNCIL-OWNED COMPANY GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 

Councillor R. Wearmouth, Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Services introduced the report. The governance framework has been 
created to outline the role of the Council within the companies. The framework 
would help the authority to move forward with the Caller recommendations. 
 
S. McMillan continued to present the report; the framework was intended to provide 
balance between Council-owned companies’ objectives and the Council as 
shareholder; it had been developed based on best practise. The framework allowed 
the Council to respond to areas highlighted in the Caller Review, particularly the 
board composition of Council-owned companies, which was to change with the 
number of independent non-executive directors increased, which would be 
achieved through an open and transparent recruitment process. There would be 
remuneration for the board members to attract and motivate high calibre 
candidates; it was noted that Councillors would only receive remuneration to the 
limit agreed and officers would not receive remuneration. The process to recruit the 
board members would start once the proposal had received approval from Cabinet 
and would be managed over a transition period  to ensure stability for the Company. 
 
The following comments were made in response to members questions:- 
 

• Concern was expressed regarding whether it was appropriate to offer 
remuneration to the independent non-executive directors.  Members were 
advised that a reasonable sum of remuneration was necessary in the current 
market and that recruitment to those positions of the calibre required may be 
otherwise difficult. 

• It was confirmed that a report outlining the company and Councillor 
arrangements would come to scrutiny. There would also be further 
information regarding the subcommittee. 

Page 4



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 12 December 2022      5 

 

• The political connection on the board had been reduced to support the 
recommendations from the Caller report. Members were informed the board 
member could not be a member of Cabinet. The recruitment process would 
be open and transparent. It would involve the Leader and the shareholder 
representative, the member would be appointed based on possessing the 
skills required for the role. 

• Members welcomed that Advance Northumberland would come to scrutiny 
annually to give an update on the work they had carried out.  
 

RESOLVED to advise the Cabinet that it supported the recommendations contained 
in the report, subject to consideration of the issues highlighted above. 
 

35. DEBT RECOVERY UPDATE 
 

J. Willis, Executive Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer), introduced the report 
with K. Teasdale, Recovery Manager. The management of income was a key 
business area for Northumberland County Council.  The Council collected income 
from many sources; some of this activity was governed by legislation while other 
areas by sound principles of financial management.  The key to economic, efficient 
and effective income management was the creation and maintenance of a clear 
framework that set out the approach, principles, ownership and strategy within which 
all activities were conducted.  

 

It is essential that income was collected effectively by the Council, and that debt owed 
to the Council was kept to a minimum.  This was because the Council had both a 
legal duty and a responsibility to its citizens to ensure that income due was paid 
promptly to ensure it can minimise the burden of unpaid debt and enhance service 
delivery.  
 
There was an awareness that the Council was still feeling repercussions from the 
Covid pandemic however progress had been made. The officers were mindful of the 
cost of living crisis and that it was likely to have an impact on debt recovery in the 
future. A new telephony tool was being introduced to the Revenue Service which 
would aim to improve engagement with customers in arrears with Council Tax at an 
early stage.  
 
RESOLVED that the information in the report be noted. 
 
 
 

36.  WORK PROGRAMME 
 

The Committee received an update on its Work Programme for the 2022/23 council 
year.  The Scrutiny Coordinator highlighted that all scrutiny members were invited to 
the January meeting to consider the Budget 2023-24 and Medium term financial 
plan 2023-27 as well as the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Members asked if they could receive at scrutiny the monthly reports received at 
Cabinet giving an update on the Council’s financial position given inflation. It was 
confirmed that the reports were available to scrutinise. 

  

Page 5



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 12 December 2022      6 

 

RESOLVED that this information was noted.   
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

 
Chairman      

 

Date       

Page 6



 

 

   1 

FORTHCOMING CABINET DECISIONS 
FEBRUARY TO APRIL 2023 
 

DECISION PROPOSED 
SCRUTINY DATE 

CABINET DATE 
 

   

Alternative Provision to Support Children 
Permanently Excluded from School 
The report seeks permission from Cabinet to 
undertake a tender process to support the 
provision of Alternative Education for children of 
statutory school age. This is a statutory service 
which is demand led meaning that the Council 
must provide full time schooling for permanently 
excluded pupils from the 6th school day. The 
request is necessary due to the approaching 
expiry of an existing tender and a likely change in 
emphasis by the Department for Education in 
respect of regulation which may have an impact 
upon levels of expenditure. 
(G. Renner Thompson/S. Aviston - (01670) 
622281) 
 

TBC 14 February 2023 

Budget 2023-24 and Medium Term Financial 
Plan 2023-27 
The report presents the updated Budget 2023-24 
and Medium Term Financial Plan 2023-27 to 
Cabinet following the receipt of the provisional 
local government settlement  
which is due to be announced during December 
2022. The report will also include an update on 
the deliverability of savings. 
(R. Wearmouth/A. Elsdon 01670 622168) 
 

Corporate Services 
and Economic 
Growth OSC 
13 February 2022 

14 February 2022 
Council 22 February 
2022 

Energising Blyth: Energy Central Campus 
Governance Arrangements Update 
This report updates Cabinet and seeks approval 
for amendments to the officers nominated as 
Directors of the Energy Central Campus 
Company Ltd. 
(W. Ploszaj/R. Strettle – 07770642773) 
 

N/A 14 February 2023 

Revenues and Benefits Policies for 2023/24 
The report sets out the policies that the 
Revenues and Benefits services operate for the 
administration of council tax, business rates, 
housing benefit and council tax support. 
The report is for information and approval of any 
updates or legislation changes that need to be 
made. 
The policies need County Council approval on 22 

Corporate Services 
and Economic 
Growth OSC 
13 February 2022 

14 February 2022 
Council 22 
February 2022 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

February 2023. 
(R. Wearmouth/G. Barnes 01670 624351) 

   

Financial Performance 2022-23 - Position at 
the end of December 2022 
The report will provide Cabinet with the revenue 
and capital financial performance against budget 
as at 31 December 2022. 
(R. Wearmouth/K. Harvey - 01670 624783) 
 

N/A 14 March 2023 

Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy 
for Northumberland 2022 
The report provides Members with the draft 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy 
2022-2026 for review and agreement 
(C. Horncastle/J. Stewart - 07771 974 112) 
 

Communities and 
Place OSC 
5 April 2023 

14 March 2023 

Service Charges in Sheltered Accommodation 
The report will request permission to introduce 
Service Charges to all tenants in 8 Sheltered 
Housing Schemes in line with those currently 
charged at Arnison Close in Allendale. The HRA 
is currently subsidising these tenants at a cost of 
approx. £200k per year.  
(C. Horncastle/S. Ogle – 07976851270) 
  

Communities and 
Place OSC 
5 April 2023 

14 March 2023 

Trading Companies’ Financial Performance 
2022-23 - Position at the end of December 
2022 
The purpose of the report is to ensure that the 
Cabinet is informed of the current financial 
positions of its trading companies for 2022-23 
(R. Wearmouth/ M. Calvert - 01670 620197) 
Confidential report 

Corporate Services 
and Economic 
Growth OSC 
13 March 2022 

14 March 2023 

   

Leisure Programme Update 
To update Cabinet with progress on the Leisure 
programme 
(J. Watson/M. Donnelly 07517 553463) 

OSC TBC 11 April 2023 

   

Financial Performance 2022-23 – Position at 
the end of March 2023 (Provisional Outturn) 
The report will provide Cabinet with the revenue 
and capital financial performance 
against budget as at 31 March 2023 (provisional 
outturn) 
(R. Wearmouth/K. Harvey - 01670 624783) 

N/A 9 May 2023 

Outcomes of Phase 2 Consultation about 
Education in Berwick Partnership 
This report sets out the feedback received from 
stakeholders arising from Phase 2 of informal 
consultation with stakeholders in the Berwick 

TBC 9 May 2023 

Page 8



 

Partnership area and other relevant parties on 
the possible models of school organisation within 
both the current 3-tier system and within a 2-tier 
(primary/secondary) system. 
(G. Renner Thompson/S. Aviston - (01670) 
622281) 
 

Leisure Programme Update 
To update Cabinet with progress on the Leisure 
programme 
(J. Watson/M. Donnelly 07517 553463) 

TBC 12 December 2023 

   

Leisure Programme Update 
To update Cabinet with progress on the Leisure 
programme 
(J. Watson/M. Donnelly 07517 553463) 

TBC 9 April 2024 

 
  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 

17 JANUARY 2023 

 
STRATEGIC CHANGE PROGRAMME – STRATEGIC BUSINESS CASE 

Report of Cabinet Member: Glen Sanderson, Leader of the Council  

Executive Director:  Jan Willis, Executive Director of Finance (S151) 

 

 

Purpose of report 

1. To present to Cabinet the Strategic Business Case which sets out opportunities for 
service improvement, the proposed programme of work and potential financial 
benefit. 

2. To present the objectives of service transformation set out in the Business Case, the 
timescales, and anticipated benefits (financial and non-financial) 

Background 

Since Phase 1 of the strategic change programme began in July 2022, key discovery and 
opportunity assessment activities have been undertaken, including data and information 
collection and analysis, multiple engagement workshops with key stakeholders and service 
experts. The draft Business Case was also subject to review by key internal stakeholders 
through multiple validation sessions. The result of the Phase 1 Discovery work is the 
Strategic Change Business Case which sets out a proposed programme of improvement 
projects that will deliver sustainable savings and service improvements across the Council. 
The Business Case has been developed with the support of consultancy business 
partners; Human Engine and Peopletoo, with input from the Programme Political Member 
Sponsor, Executive Sponsor, Programme Lead and delegated workstream leads (service 
subject matter experts). 

Executive Summary 

Local Government is facing an unprecedented series of challenges over a sustained 
period. Against this background of severe financial constraint, customer demands are 
increasing and advances in technology have led customers to expect that their local 
Council will interact with them in very different ways. In addition, the Council faces 
increasing pressure on services from an ageing population.  

The strategic change programme has set out to redesign the way the Council delivers local 
public services within the context of the ongoing challenges. The Council can no longer 
afford to do all the things it does in the way it currently does them. The aim of the programme 
is to transform public services so that they are delivered in a more cost-effective and 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



- 2 - 

sustainable way. This includes how we deliver our services to customers, the way the 
Council is run, and how we utilise our resources, technology, assets, and people. 
 
This business case sets out a package of step changes that will deliver significant financial 
savings, while making the Council more modern, efficient, and fit for purpose.  This is not 
about cutting services, but about transforming the way services are delivered and how the 
Council operates to achieve the best outcomes for our customers and residents.   
 
The business case has set defined seven workstreams as follows: 

 Best Services to Customers 
 Best Value for Money 
 Best in Class Commissioning 
 Best Use of Resources 
 Best use of Assets 
 Best Use of Technology 
 Best Talent and Opportunities 

  
The Programme and the business case will support the Council to deliver its three priorities 
of economic growth, addressing inequalities, and value for money.   

If the business case is approved, a further report will be brought to Cabinet outlining the 
authority’s approach to the management of change and the proposed governance 
arrangements for the programme. 

 

Next Steps 

The Mobilisation Plan for the Programme was approved by the Strategic Change 
Programme Board on 14th December, which includes the Leader and Deputy Leader.  The 
purpose of the Mobilisation Plan is to provide an understanding of the key steps that are 
required to initiate and commence the delivery of the programme and workstream projects 
specified in the Strategic Business Case. Next steps are identified as: 

1. Mobilisation Pre-work - Completion of all Pre-work set out in the Mobilisation Plan 
(Timescale: January to March 2023) 

2. Programme Governance - Review of the Programme governance arrangements. 
The Strategic Change Programme Board will be asked to consider and governance 
arrangements, which will then be presented to Cabinet for approval (Timescale: 
January to March 2023) 

3. Project Planning – High level implementation plans for workstream projects have 
been created to support an understanding of resource requirements and 
dependencies across workstream projects. More detailed project implementation 
plans will be developed over the coming months if the Business Case is approved 
by Cabinet (Timescale: January – April 2023) 

4. Resource Planning – The resource requirements for the Programme and 
workstream projects are currently being assessed. This assessment includes the 
identification of NCC staffing resources needed for the design and delivery of 
projects, as well as the identification of any specialist resources that may be 
required. The resulting output for this exercise is the Programme Resource Plan. 

Page 12



- 3 - 

The Resource Plan is scheduled for presentation to Strategic Change Programme 
Board on 27th January 2023 and will set out key options and recommendations for 
resourcing the design, delivery and implementation of workstream projects. A report 
outlining these key options and recommendations will then be brought to Cabinet. 

Recommendations 

1. That Cabinet approve the Strategic Change Business Case. 
2. That Cabinet approve the mobilisation of the Programme in line with the 

implementation timescales set out in the Strategic Business Case i.e., February 
2023 – March 2025. 
 

Links to Corporate Plan  

This report is relevant to “Value for Money”, “Enabling Growth” and “Tackling Inequalities” 
priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-2021. The Strategic Change 
Programme also supports the implementation and embedding of the Caller Programme 
Work Packages i.e., Corporate Plan, Enhanced Performance framework, Best Value 
Council, Data and BI Strategy and Council Values. 

Implications 

Policy N/A 

Finance and 
value for 
money 

Savings 

Collectively, the Business Case sets out a programme of change 
estimated to achieve Council wide savings of more than £20m 
(Low: £17.9m and High: £38.5m). Savings will be incrementally 
achieved over the next 3 years as and when change projects are 
delivered. 

Investment 

The Council agreed at its budget meeting in February 2022 to 
set aside £3 million per annum for the years 2022-23 to 2024-25 
in order to pump prime and facilitate the transformation of its 
services.  Money from the Transformation Fund will in the main, 
only be allocated to projects on an invest to save basis.  There 
may be circumstances where a return on the investment is not 
required but this will be the exception rather than the norm. 

The Strategic Change Programme Board has been established 
to oversee the Strategic Change Programme and it is the 
Strategic Change Programme Board that will make the final 
decision regarding investment from the Transformation Fund.  
Cashable Savings Benefits achieved following project delivery 
and Transformation Budget Spend will be continuously 
monitored and reported to the Board throughout the lifecycle of 
the Programme 

Page 13



- 4 - 

Legal Within the design stages of workstream projects, regular 
assessment of any legal requirements / legal constraints will be 
identified and advice taken where necessary. When needed, 
legal issues will be escalated to Programme Board and / 
Executive Team for strategic advisory and decision. 

Procurement Within the Strategic Change Business Case ‘Best In Class 
Commissioning’ is identified as a specific Workstream with key 
projects identified to support improvement to the Council 
Commissioning Framework, Category Management approach 
and management of Council contracts. The increased use of 
local businesses in Northumberland and the north-east region 
will remain a key priority for this workstream.  

It will be necessary to tender for a delivery business partner to 
provide specialist support and advisory for the delivery of key 
workstream projects. 

Human 
Resources 

Within the Strategic Change Business Case ‘Best Talent and 
Opportunities’ and ‘Best Use of Resources’ are identified as a 
specific Workstreams with deliverable improvement projects. 

The Strategic Change Programme requires specialist HR 
resource to deliver projects which impact on staff. The 
Programme Team will be supported by HR Specialists and an OD 
Lead Officer. 

Property Within the Strategic Change Business Case ‘Best Use of Assets’ 
is identified as a specific Workstream with key projects identified 
for the Programme which will support a strategic review of the 
corporate estate and improvements to how the Council uses and 
manages properties within the corporate estate portfolio. 

Equalities 

(Impact 
Assessment 
attached) 

Yes ☐ No    
N/A       ☐ 

The Business Case sets out multiple projects for delivery within 
the Programme and a key aim of the programme is ‘no detriment 
to residents. This will be a key consideration for the design of each 
change project option and the anticipated equalities impact. 
Following the design phase of each project, an individual project 
Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) will be completed based on 
design options set out in an Options Appraisal for consideration 
and decision by Programme Board. EIA’s will be subject to 
consultation with equalities specialist within the Council and will 
be subject to frequent review and update based on the chosen 
option. 

Risk 
Assessment 

A Programme Risk Register has been developed with the 
identification of strategic risks and operational risks. Identified 
strategic risks will be monitored in collaboration with the 
Corporate Risk Team if the Business Case is approved by 
Cabinet. 

Page 14



- 5 - 

 

The most significant strategic risk to the Programme is: 

“There is a risk to Programme decision making and service 
specific advisory due to imminent Organisational Restructure 
(Tiers 2 and 3 of the Council Structure)” - The impact is likely to 
be delays to Programme implementation and the achievement of 
cashable benefits. Current Risk: HIGH 

It is anticipated that the current risk to the Programme will reduce 
in April in line with the implementation timescales of the new 
Council structure.  

Crime & 
Disorder 

N/A 

Customer 
Consideration 

Residents First is a primary objective of the Strategic Change 
Programme and ‘Best Service to Customers’ is identified as a 
specific Workstream in the Business Case. Key improvement 
projects identified for delivery, will focus on improvements to 
customer access, customer contact and engagement. 
Implementation of the improvement projects set out in the 
Business Case are also anticipated to achieve a reduction in the 
volume of customer complaints. 

Carbon 
reduction 

The Business Case sets out multiple projects for delivery within 
the Programme. Following the design phase of each project, an 
individual project Carbon Impact Assessment (CIA) will be 
completed based on design options set out in an Options 
Appraisal for consideration and decision by Programme Board. 
CIA’s will be subject to consultation with the Council’s Climate 
Change specialists within the Council and will be subject to 
frequent review and update based on the chosen option.  
Positive contributions to the Council’s carbon reduction targets 
will be monitored and mitigation will be sought for any negative 
impacts identified as a result of changes. 

Health and 
Wellbeing  

The Strategic Change Programme is closely linked to work set 
out in the Inequalities Programme. The design options for each 
workstream project, will be viewed through the ‘inequalities lens’ 
to ensure cohesion of delivery priorities. Programme Leads from 
each programme will maintain regular contact to ensure that 
dependencies across programmes are known and understood. 

Wards The Programme and the Business Case are ‘Council wide’ 
therefore, all wards benefit equally from the change, 
improvements, and cost savings of the Programme   

 
Background papers: 

Page 15



- 6 - 

Lead Members and Officers were consulted on throughout Programme Phase 1 
‘Discovery’ and the development of Strategic Change Business Case. 
 
Report sign off. 
 
Authors must ensure that officers and members have agreed the content of the 
report:  
 
 Full Name of Officer 
Monitoring Officer/Legal Suki Binjal 
Executive Director of Finance & S151 Officer Jan Willis 
Relevant Executive Director Jan Willis 
Chief Executive Rick O’Farrell 
Portfolio Holder(s) Cllr Glen Sanderson 

Cllr Richard Wearmouth 
 
 
Author and Contact Details 
 
Kelly Gardner, Senior Service Director and Programme Director 
Kelly.Gardner@northumberland.gov.uk  
Mobile: 07814484613 
 
Isobel Nicholson, Programme Manager 
Isobel.Nicholson@northumberland.gov.uk 
Mobile: 07814484613 
 
 

Page 16



 

 1 

Strategic Change Business Case 

 

Contents 
Context and Drivers for Change..................................................................................................................... 3 

Our Strategic Business Case for a Better Northumberland ........................................................................... 3 

Best Value for Money .................................................................................................................................... 5 

Planning, Performance and Accountability Framework ............................................................................ 5 

Service Reviews.......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Community Based Service Provision ....................................................................................................... 11 

Best in Class Commissioning ........................................................................................................................ 15 

Commissioning Framework ..................................................................................................................... 15 

Spend with Third Parties .......................................................................................................................... 17 

Category Management ............................................................................................................................ 17 

Best Service to Customers ........................................................................................................................... 19 

Customer Target Access Model and Strategy.......................................................................................... 19 

Customer Services Integration and Improvement .................................................................................. 20 

Customer Insight ...................................................................................................................................... 21 

Delivering Proactive Customer Services .................................................................................................. 21 

Digital Customer Services ........................................................................................................................ 24 

Best Use of Resources.................................................................................................................................. 28 

Streamlined Operating Framework ......................................................................................................... 28 

Creating Centres of Excellence ................................................................................................................ 29 

Employee Service Centre and Transactions Hub ..................................................................................... 32 

Best Use of Assets ........................................................................................................................................ 34 

Estates Review ......................................................................................................................................... 34 

Integrated Services .................................................................................................................................. 36 

Best Use of Technology ............................................................................................................................... 37 

Streamlined Technical Architecture ........................................................................................................ 37 

Modern Work Tools ................................................................................................................................. 39 

Delivering Transformation through Technology ..................................................................................... 42 

Best Talent and Opportunities ..................................................................................................................... 43 

Workforce Blueprint ................................................................................................................................ 43 

Page 17



 

 2 

Leadership Framework ............................................................................................................................ 44 

Employer Value Proposition .................................................................................................................... 45 

Savings and Investment Case ...................................................................................................................... 46 

Savings Summary ..................................................................................................................................... 46 

Investment Summary............................................................................................................................... 47 

Programme Delivery Model......................................................................................................................... 49 

Risk Management ........................................................................................................................................ 51 

 
 
 

Page 18



 

 3 

Context and Drivers for Change 
 
The strategic change programme has set out to redesign the way the council delivers local public services 

within the context of the ongoing financial challenge. The council can no longer afford to do all the things 

it does in the way it currently does them. The programme has set out to transform public services so that 

they are delivered in a more cost-effective way. This includes the way the council is run, how we utilise 

our resources, technology, assets and people and how we deliver our services to customers. 

 

Financial constraints are not the only reasons for change. The programme and the business case will 

support the council to deliver its three priorities of economic growth, inequalities and value for money.  

 

Our Strategic Business Case for a Better Northumberland 
 
This business case sets out a package of transformational changes that will deliver significant financial 
savings, while making the council more modern, efficient and fit for purpose.  This is not about cutting 
services, but about transforming the way services are delivered and how the council operates. 
 
 

 

Page 19



 

 4 

▪ Best Service to Customers – By redesigning our customer access model, we will change the way we 

deliver service to customers, make better use of the data we gather, deliver a more proactive service 

and make the best use of digital services to make savings of between £3m and £4.65m. 

 

▪ Best Value for Money – By introducing a new approach to planning and performance, and designing 

more services with a Communities First ethos, we will achieve better outcomes for customers while 

reducing demand on higher cost public services to make savings of between £7.2m and £8.0m. 

 

▪ Best in Class Commissioning – A new approach to commissioning and procurement will improve the 

quality of public services in Northumberland, involve more people in how they are designed and 

delivered, and manage our spend with suppliers more commercially to make savings of up to £21m. 

 

 

▪ Best Use of Resources – By reorganising our structures, reducing bureaucracy and better managing 

our internal demand, we can create clearer career pathways for our staff, a better employee 

experience and make savings of between £2m and £3.25m. 

 

▪ Best Use of Assets – By better managing our assets through a corporate landlord approach we will 

reduce the size of our property estate to deliver capital receipts and reduce how much we spend on 

maintaining buildings.   A better approach to facilities management and planned maintenance will 

make savings of £255k. 

 

▪ Best Use of Technology – By investing in our ability to design and build our own technology solutions, 

we will reduce the number and complexity of our ICT systems and make savings of up to £1m. 

 

▪ Best Talent and Opportunities - By transforming our workforce to reflect the needs of a modern local 

authority, we will support the implementation of this business case and be best placed to deliver the 

council’s strategic priorities.   We will create opportunities that attract the best talent to 

Northumberland and give people great reasons to stay. 

 

 

The package of transformational changes set out in this business case will deliver savings of between: 

£17.9m 

Low 

£38.2m 

High 

Page 20



 

 5 

Best Value for Money 
 

By introducing a more rigorous approach to planning and performance management, and designing 

more services with a Communities First ethos, we will achieve better outcomes for customers while 

reducing demand on higher cost public services to make savings of: 

£7.2m 

Low 

£8.0m 

High 

 

Planning, Performance and Accountability Framework 

 
An external review of the council’s governance and internal feedback has highlighted weaknesses in how 
the council plans, prioritises and ensures that strategic objectives are delivered by services and suppliers.  
In our new model, this will be addressed through a new Performance and Accountability Framework. 
 

Page 21



 

 6 

The new framework will align the council’s strategic priorities, financial planning and service area 

activities.  This will create a clear golden thread from the council’s Strategic Plan all the way through to 

objectives for teams and individuals that will ensure everyone understands the council’s mission and is 

working together in the same direction to achieve it.  This will be supported by clear accountabilities at all 

levels of the organisation and a robust approach to performance management – whether services are 

being delivered by the council, external suppliers or with partners. 

 

Once a mature level of organisational planning and performance management has been successfully 

embedded, this will be developed into an Outcomes Based Resourcing Framework.  This will provide a 

change in mindset towards budgets being about investment in achieving outcomes, with clear targets and 

expectations around measurable outcomes for customers and communities.  This will be supported by 

the council’s new Commissioning Framework, which will provide a systematic way of determining whether 

the council, external suppliers, partners or communities are best placed to achieve the desired outcomes 

within the available budget. 

 

This will be underpinned by robust intelligence gathering and analysis, drawing on internal and external 

data sources to identify the services and solutions that will address the needs of customers and 

communities in the most resource-efficient way.  The detail of how this will be achieved will be set out in 

a new Data and Business Intelligence Strategy, which has already been commissioned. 

 

 

Benefits 

▪ A clear golden thread from the council’s strategic priorities to team and individual objectives 

▪ Clarity over how political priorities are translated into day-to-day service delivery 

▪ Improved decision making through better quality evidence, analysis and planning 

▪ A robust approach to mapping council and community assets, and making best use of all available 

resources when setting budgets and designing services 

▪ Plans for support services (e.g. Finance, HR, ICT, Procurement) that are clearly linked to departmental 

business plans, allowing for effective forward planning and resource management 

▪ Streamlined governance and project management arrangements across the council 

▪ Consistent high standards for the management of both in-house and contracted services 

▪ Improved visibility of performance, focusing on the most relevant performance information 

 

 

Page 22



 

 7 

Service Reviews 

 
Service areas with high levels of demand were subject to service reviews to determine opportunities to 
drive down demand or change operating models. Key lines of enquiry were determined based on level of 
expenditure and demand pressures on the service. Deep dives were completed into: 
 
▪ Adult Social Care  

▪ Children’s Services 

▪ Local Services 

 

Adult Social Care 
Demand for Homecare 
There is currently a low use of Direct Payments and the Personal Assistant (PA) market is underdeveloped 
across Northumberland. Whilst there is a risk that stimulating the PA market may have an adverse impact 
on recruitment in homecare, experience would indicate that the typical individual who is interested in 
becoming a self-employed PA is not usually currently employed by a homecare agency.  
 
There is ongoing work to review the requirement for ‘double ups’, where two carers are required to 
support an individual, placing a greater strain on homecare agencies. To support this review, there should 
be focus on the role of tech-enabled care in reducing the requirement for sleep ins and waking nights 
which will create capacity in the care sector. 
 
Longer term, there is opportunity to work with the market to increase and change the profile of extra care 
in the county. There are areas within the county that do not have access to suitable Extra Care schemes.  
 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings £960,336 £1,920,672 £960,336  £3,841,344 

*note these savings have been modelled using a weekly net cost for residential care of £450 and a net 
weekly cost of a domiciliary care package of £207 (above the current average of £139), based on a full 
year effect reduction of 304 placements equating to 25% of OP long term packages of care. 
 
Reducing Demand for High-Cost Independent Supported Living Placements 
Analysis has shown that there is low take up of Shared Lives in Northumberland with currently 35 adults 
with learning disabilities in receipt of a long-term package of support. This equates to 4% of 18–64-year-
olds with learning disabilities. Shared Lives schemes offer people aged 18 and older the opportunity to 
live an ordinary domestic life with an approved carer. This offers an alternative to supported living or 
residential care. 
 
ASC will look to refresh the campaign for recruiting adult foster carers. We will use profile modelling to 
target groups who may be interested in opening their homes to vulnerable working age adults or older 
people. The campaign will also deliver a series of engagement sessions for social care frontline workers 
and service users and their families, to heighten the profile of shared lives schemes as an alternative to 
supported living and residential care.  
 
The savings outlined below are based on reducing 10 independent supported living placements with 
overnight support to shared lives placements. 

Page 23



 

 8 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings £56,550 £113,100 £56,550  £226,200 

 
Children’s Services 
Across Children’s Services, Northumberland County Council benchmarked well against statistical 
neighbours across the country. This led to only one service forming a key line of enquiry. 
 
Home to School Transport 
Like many Home to School Transport Services, the service is under increasing financial pressure caused 
through both an increase in children with SEND requiring transport (18% in 21/22), but also due to 
inflationary pressures impacting on operational costs such as fuel and vehicles.  
 
Opportunities for efficiencies are summarised as: 
 
▪ Reviewing pick up points 

▪ Better use of personal budgets 

▪ Use of enhanced budgets 

▪ Reduction in travel distance  

▪ Route mapping  

▪ Review of application process  

▪ Better use of resources  

▪ Supplier management  

▪ Independent travel 

Page 24



 

 9 

The above initiatives have been quantified in the table below: 
 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Pick up Points £55,000 £55,000 - £110,000 

Personal Budgets  £118,500 £59,250 £59,250 £237,000 

Enhanced Budgets  £70,000 £77,000 - £147,000 

Route Mapping  £92,500 £92,500 - £185,000 

Independent Travel  - £44,632 £144,981 £189,613 

Investment in back- 
office team  

(£150,000) - - 
(£150,000) 

Investment in ITT 
team 
 

(£50,000) (£50,000) - 
 

(100,000) 

Total £136,000 £278,382 £204,231 £618,613 

 

Local Services 

Four service reviews were completed as part of the Local Services review using cost benchmarking from 
LG Inform, CIPFA family cost groups and comparing this with NCC service models. The following 
opportunities have been identified: 
 

Waste 

▪ Reconfiguring collection services to make efficiencies in collection rounds and scheduling. 

▪ Re-modelling of the residual waste and recycling collections to deliver productivity gains and make 

use of spare capacity on rounds can deliver savings of £250k 

▪ Bringing trade waste services in line with industry best practice for resource deployment, productivity 

and charging can deliver additional net income of £150K 

 

Grounds Maintenance 
▪ Reducing expenditure by head of population based on benchmarking can deliver savings of £250k 

 
Street Cleansing 
▪ Reducing expenditure by head of population based on benchmarking can deliver savings of £210k 

 
Highways 
▪ Opportunities through a review of highways strategy, Asset Management Plan and prioritisation of 

structural maintenance work, review of highways safety policy and inspection risk management can 

delivery revenue savings of £250k 

▪ Opportunity to increase income from parking fees and charges of £200k 

 

Savings Low  High  

Waste £398,000 £1.375m 

Page 25



 

 10 

Grounds Maintenance £250,000 £250,000 

Street Cleansing £210,000 £210,000 

Highways £450,000 £450,000 

Total £1.31m £2.03m 

 
  

Page 26



 

 11 

Community Based Service Provision 

 

A new Communities First model will provide better outcomes at lower cost, preventing people from going 

into higher cost health and care services.   

 

This will build on the work that has already been done by Northumberland Communities Together, which 

has built the foundations for a new approach to community delivery and has already delivered 

quantitative and qualitative benefits to communities and the council alike. There is also good evidence 

from other authorities that small investments in community-based initiatives can keep people out of 

higher cost services for longer. 

 

Northumberland has a strong set of lessons learned from the pandemic and Storm Arwen evidencing the 

role of community response and community groups in service delivery. These are already shaping service 

delivery and can enable this new model of community-based service provision to be sustainable. We have 

learned that: 

 

▪ The county has resilient communities, giving us confidence that this model can be successful 

▪ Our voluntary and community groups hold the best local knowledge, and we need to do more to 

empower them 

▪ Previously perceived barriers to working have been removed. Communities and council have worked 

closely over the last two years to challenge previous ways of working  

▪ We are able to make risk-aware, rather than risk-averse, decisions to get services delivered  

▪ Our cross-system partnerships have improved and were critical to delivering crisis response service 

during the pandemic and Storm Arwen 

▪ Communities are already ‘doing it’ for themselves and our role is to support them to remain self-

sufficient and resilient 

Community based services should be aimed to prevent the necessity for higher need care by focussing on: 

 

▪ Supporting communities to be healthy and independent 

▪ Developing skills and employability  

▪ Creating better placed to live, work and socialise 

▪ Encouraging community cohesion 

Our Community Based Services Model 

Our model seeks to shift demand from high need, high-cost services to lower cost community driven 

services that are accessible to residents where they live and in so doing increasing community capacity, 

capability and cohesion. 

 

Similar models of delivery have shown an average cost of VCS intervention at £1,882 per interaction 

annually. This compares to Northumberland’s average homecare packages costs of £7,512 annually. 

Page 27



 

 12 

 

This model can deliver savings by transitioning those who receive low level packages of care to 

community-based services, deflecting referrals from the adult social care front door and Care Act 

assessment waiting list to community-based services and prevent additional care needs. Benchmarking 

has shown that a strong community-based service model can deflect or joint work with up to 70% of 

referrals into adult social care. 

 
This model will work alongside the ongoing Inequalities Programme and Thriving Together by bringing 

partners together and utilising Community Connectors and Link Workers to signpost and provide 

information, advice and guidance to residents. The model will be implemented through pump priming 

community projects that deliver against the objectives of the and enable projects to become sustainable.  

 

Partnership and Co-production 

Working with our partners across Northumberland is critical to successful shifting the focus to 

communities first.  

 

Page 28



 

 13 

 

Such a partnership approach will also support cross-locality partners deliver in line with the recently 

published working in partnership with people and communities statutory guidance from the NHS.   

 

Savings 

Delivering our new Communities First model is an invest-to-save approach. We will seek to pool existing 

grant funding pots to maximise economies of scale, remove duplication of funding and ensure best use of 

resources. Savings are based on a target 5% transition from low level packages of care to community 

support, a 100 reduction in growth through deflections from Care Act Assessments and investment in 

intervention and prevention services to increase capacity and capability of community-based services.  

 

Investment in the communities first model can be scaled up or down to widen reach of funded initiatives. 

It is anticipated that year 1 of the programme will be used to co-design and co-produce the model, with 

community funding available from year.   

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings  £723,424 £966,132 £1,689,556 

Investment  (£188,188) (£251,353) (£439,541) 

Net  £535,236 £714,779 £1,250,015 

 

Other Benefits 

In addition to financial benefits, a communities first model will deliver a series of non-financial benefits to 

communities, the council and partners: 

Page 29

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/working-in-partnership-with-people-and-communities-statutory-guidance/


 

 14 

▪ Better outcomes for individuals and communities 

▪ Reducing inequalities in communities most in need by targeting services based on locality need 

▪ Helping people to live independently for longer in their own homes 

▪ Reducing demand on high-cost health and care services across the public service system, such as social 

care hours, GP appointments, hospital bed days and A&E visits 

▪ Impact on the wider determinants of health, such as skills and employability, housing and social 

isolation 

▪ Improved pathways between services and better joined up prevention and early intervention services, 

including outreach contact from NCC customer services (see Best Services to Customers chapter) 

▪ Increasing capability of voluntary and community groups  

▪ Enabling the council to target under-represented groups across the county, be that by geography, 

interest or identity 

▪ Opportunity to increase volunteer numbers across Northumberland

Page 30



 

 15 

 

Best in Class Commissioning  
 

By introducing a new commissioning framework, underpinned by a category management approach, 

we’ll improve the quality of public services in Northumberland, involve more people in how they are 

designed and delivered, and manage our spend with suppliers more commercially to make savings of: 

£5m 

Low 

£21m 

High 

 

Commissioning Framework 

 

Around 60% of the council’s budget is spent with third party suppliers, from social care services to energy 

and staff travel.  A new Commissioning Framework will provide a robust and commercially minded 

approach to ensuring that good outcomes, value for money and social value are achieved from all 

decisions to spend money with third parties. 

 

Page 31



 

 16 

Supporting this will be a Service Design Framework that blends customer-centric engagement principles 

from Design Thinking methodologies with the council’s Communities First approach to tackling inequalities.  

This will ensure that the assets and resources of communities are considered in service design, as well as 

their specific needs.  The approach will apply to geographical communities, communities of need and when 

designing services for internal users (staff and Members). 

 

The council’s approach to commissioning is currently fragmented.  There are individual examples of good 

practice within departments but no overall strategic approach to commissioning.  This misses opportunities 

for collaboration and joining up spend to achieve better value for money.  To successfully embed the new 

Commissioning Framework, staff in relevant roles (commissioning, procurement and contract management) 

will work together much more collaboratively within a new, ‘networked’ model of professional practice.  

This will be supported by a Commissioning & Contracts job family as part of our new Workforce Blueprint. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Benefits 

The council’s new approach to commissioning will: 

▪ Achieve better outcomes for service users through robust planning and analysis 

▪ Involve individuals, communities and Members in designing and delivering services 

▪ Improve strategic planning and compliance through a systematic approach to commissioning 

▪ Ensure that value for money is delivered on an ongoing basis, beyond the current transformation 

▪ Create a community of practice for knowledge sharing and skills transfer 

▪ Allow policy requirements and best practice to be more effectively embedded in the organisation 

 

Page 32



 

 17 

Spend with Third Parties 

 
In 2021/22 the council spent £1.5bn with third parties, around £500m of which is ‘addressable spend’, 
meaning that the council can influence it in some way.  This spend is highly fragmented, with many service 
areas purchasing similar goods, works and services – either from different supplier or from the same 
suppliers under different contracts or with no formal contracts in place.  Examples include:  
 
▪ 348 suppliers of Repairs and Maintenance services, across 275 different cost centres 

▪ 162 suppliers of Grounds Maintenance services, in addition to an in-house team 

▪ 163 suppliers of Fleet and Plant Maintenance 

▪ 198 suppliers of Printing and Reprographics 

▪ 80+ suppliers of Temporary Agency Staff 

 
Initial analysis of the opportunities to reduce third party spend through consolidation of contracts or 
renegotiation of prices have identified savings of between £1.4m and £2.4m. 
 

 Spend Category Target Low Target High 

 ICT Spend Rationalisation £500,000 £1,000,000 

 FM, Repairs and Maintenance £60,000 £90,000 

 Fleet and Plant Maintenance £70,000 £140,000 

 Fleet and Plant Hire and Lease £122,500 £245,000 

 Grounds Maintenance £55,000 £110,000 

 Reduction in Agency Fees £45,000 £225,000 

 Printing, Reprographics and Postage £92,000 £185,000 

 Renegotiation of High Cost Packages £588,744 £588,744 

 Total £1,533,250 £2,583,750 

 
Total of Savings Opportunities* 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings - £516,000 £516,000 £1,033,000 

Investment** - - - - 

Net - £516,000 £516,000 £1,033,000 

 

* ICT figures have been excluded from above table to avoid double-count with Best Use of Technology. 

** Investment requirements are covered by Category Management investments below. 

Category Management 

 
The savings identified from spend with third parties identified above are an initial assessment of 

opportunities from an evidence-based, but high-level, analysis of the council’s contracts and spend data.   

Page 33



 

 18 

Supporting this will be a new approach to Category Management, a strategic approach to procurement 

that enables organisations to better manage both their spend and their relationships with the market.  

Category management will take the council’s existing, fragmented spend and organise it into common 

groups called ‘categories’.  This will allow requirements to be consolidated and simplified; savings will be 

made through economies of scale and leveraging the council’s combined purchasing power.  

Requirements that are specific to certain departments will also be better supported by a strategic, 

commercially skilled procurement team which will work with budget holders to identify savings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The specific opportunities identified in Spend with Third Parties section above serve as a proof of concept.  

Further savings will be identified by the council’s new category management capability, both within the 

lifetime of this three-year transformation and on an ongoing basis.  If the council reduces its remaining 

third party spend (excluding the areas already identified) by just 1%, this will generate savings of £4m.  

There is potential to significantly exceed this figure – savings of 5% would generate savings of £20m. 

 

A new Contract Management Framework, supported by toolkits, training and resources, will ensure that 

cost reductions remain locked in during the lifetime of contracts and that suppliers deliver ongoing value. 

 

Savings  

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings £500,000 £2,000,000 £1,500,000 £4,000,000 

Investment (recurring) (£150,000) (£150,000)  (£300,000) 

Net £350,000 £1,850,000 £1,200,000 £3,700,000 

  

Page 34



 

 19 

Best Service to Customers 
 

By redesigning our customer access model, we will change the way we deliver our customer services, 

better use the customer insight we gather, deliver proacting customer services and make best use of 

digital services to make savings of: 

£3m 

Low 

£4.65m 

High 

 

Customer Target Access Model and Strategy 

 
To determine an understanding of the ‘as is’ position of customer services, customer access and customer 

experience a maturity assessment was undertaken across six themes; strategy, culture and skills, 

performance, demand management, digital and customer insights. This set out the current maturity of 

the organisation’s customer access, services and experience and the ambition for development. Our new 

operating model for customer services is underpinned by the following designed principles, which were 

agreed to guide business case implementation.  

 

1. Seeing the whole picture: Customer access, services and experience will be considered interlinked 

when improving our offering.   

2. Accessible Services: Our strategy and services will be jargon-free to improve customer understanding. 

We will manage expectations with clear and accessible service standards.   

3. Right channel for the right customer: Customer outcomes will be at the forefront of our thinking - we 

will consistently push the benefits of self-service options as the first point-of-contact where it is right 

to do so but remain conscious of the need for alternative channels for different community groups.   

4. Empowering our customers: Our strategy and services will be designed to create a sense of 

empowerment and control. We will reduce the number of times we ask customers for the same 

details.   

5. Proactive as well as reactive: Our strategy and services will be two-way, proactively signposting 

customers to services based on the insight we gather, as well as supporting customers with the service 

they require.   

6. Committed to user research: Our strategy and services will be underpinned by a commitment to 

continuous user research, rather than one-off engagement at the beginning of a project.   

 

This new approach will be delivered through a new customer access model which will help focus on 

delivering services through the right channel at the right time. The new customer access model sets out 

how online self service will be the first point-of-contact for all information, advice and guidance and 

transactional council services. Whilst we expect to deal with most queries through this channel, we know 

Page 35



 

 20 

this is not always the right approach so the model sets out how we will utilise telephony and face-to-face 

contact to support with more complex cases and utilise proactive outbound calling as a preventative 

measure to reduce future demand on services (see community-based service provision chapter and 

customer insight project).  

 

 
 

Benefits  

▪ Development of a customer service strategy to provide consistency in our approach to customer 

services, access and experience   

▪ Empowering customers with a channel of their choice    

▪ Creating a structure that incorporates resource management, customer insight and absorbs more 

contact from all areas of the organisation   

▪ Promotes the role of proactive outbound contact that aligns with prevention objectives of 

community-based service provision and other initiatives, including the Inequalities Programme   

▪ Reduction in failure demand prioritising those key high-volume services  

▪ Increase in first contact resolution   

▪ Improved customer experience by triaging enquiries so that they are solved at earliest point of contact   

 

Customer Services Integration and Improvement  

As well as the corporate contact centre the deals with the majority of customer contact, there are 

currently separate contact teams for adult social care, school admissions, family information service, 

school transport and revenues and benefits (including council tax and blue badges). Integrating more 

Page 36



 

 21 

services into the corporate contact centre will create economies of scale and create capacity for service 

teams to deliver more complex work. It will enable a more joined up experience for residents that can 

have multiple queries across the organisation dealt with in the one place and create the data to support 

“a single view” of the customer. However, moving the contact across on its own it not enough and 

specialist teams will be created to upskill customer staff to deliver what the services need them too.  

 
 

Customer Service teams have told us: 
 

“We spend a lot of time apologising for other departments who do not explain why a service hasn’t 
been completed or give us any support.” 

“I do not have a good understanding of other services to be able to signpost” 
“We are often the last to know about changes.” 

“I feel as though I do not have enough knowledge to help customers in the ‘best’ way. Sometimes feels 
as though we fumble our way through.” 

 

 
 

Benefits  
▪ More resolution at FPC  
▪ Greater understand of customer need   
▪ Reduced failure demand 
▪ Reduced officer time in back-office services to aid productivity and service delivery   
 

Customer Insight 

Customer insight will play a crucial role in developing and improving services by understanding customer 

demand and measuring the impact of delivery. We will develop the resources and tools to measure 

customer satisfaction in real time and enable us to recognise frustrations and immediately react to them. 

Customers will be able to leave feedback and this will be collated through a dashboard to score the level 

of service they receive, against which service and which advisor. This will lead to the team identifying 

barriers and pain points for customers, recognise training needs and reduce complaints by reacting to 

customer needs swiftly.  

  
Benefits  
▪ Real time understanding of demand and customer contact   
▪ Better use of resources   
▪ Services shaped on customer feedback   
▪ Stronger and more collaborative relationships with services 
 

Delivering Proactive Customer Services  

The access model sets out the ambition to deliver customer interactions through digital channels, giving 

them the option to self-serve at a time and place of their choice.  However, for some residents this will 

neither be possible or indeed deliver the right outcome for them or the organisation. 

Page 37



 

 22 

Some residents rely on information centres to support them with applications – the highest demand for 

face-to-face services is for Blue Badges and Concessionary Bus Passes. Northumberland has an above 

average older person population, with 25.5% over the age of 65, compared to 18.9% nationally. There are 

currently over 55,000 concessionary bus passes in use, 21% of these are for 81 – 100-year-olds. Feedback 

from staff and customers say they find the online process difficult to navigate and are unable to upload 

required documents.  

 

The diagram below details the locations and activity levels for existing face-to-face contact centre 

provision in the county. It demonstrates where services are co-located to provide insight to where more 

partnership working could be developed to support residents. 

 

Page 38



 

 23 

   

Page 39



 

 24 

   
 

We will change our centres by inviting other complimentary services to co-locate (please see community 

chapter). This will ensure that residents have access to information, advice and guidance or support 

available to them. We will hold events to reduce demand and upskill our residents. We will better 

anticipate our residents needs through our centres to reduce demand from those who do not need it and 

actively seek opportunities to enhance the lives of those who require additional support. 

 

Benefits  

▪ Reduce number of residents needing high-cost services   

▪ Improve the quality of life for residents   

▪ More fulfilling role for customer staff  

▪ Reduce stress and time spent for officers across the organisation   

Digital Customer Services  

Digital is a critical enabler to the new access model, not only by moving transactional, non-complex 

services online, but by providing the digital tools to enable officers to support residents. Using digital 

services will create end to end processes that will shorten service delivery and create efficiency in officer 

time.  

 

We know our residents have an appetite to find information and self-serve. We had over 4.8m page views 

on our website this year and a recent survey of contact centre calls showed that 26% of all telephone calls 

were a result of not completing an online transaction successfully.  

 

 

Page 40



 

 25 

Despite residents demonstrating their ability and desire to use online services, only 4.5% are signed up 

for an account for their council tax. Residents and staff have told us that they are unable to locate the 

information they are seeking and that the “My Account” features are too limited. A recent study of our 

website scored 64/100 on accessibility.  

 

Our customers told us: 

 

“I am partially sighted and found the online system too difficult to use, so I have had to call you” 

“I’ve looked on the website but can't find where to order a death certificate” 

“I am trying to apply for school transport but my son's school is not on your drop-down list” 

“Tried to renew my bus pass but needed a code which you have not sent me” 

“I tried to pay my rent online but asked me for a 12-digit refence number and the one you sent me is 13” 

“Tried to pay for green waste online but account stated I had multiple bins” 

 

 

There is an increasing demand for digital change work across the organisation. Since March 2021 there 

has been 261 internal requests for digital support. Currently the team have completed 91 of those 

requests and have 60 in progress but a further 110 are still outstanding.  Requests include reducing 

demand (automating emails), communicating with residents (support in SMS), reducing carbon footprint 

with digital advertising and updating systems and turning paper applications into online services.  

 

There are many examples across local authorities where digital has transformed services. In Cumbria an 

end-to-end waste permit was developed with integrated number plate checking, resulting in an 83% 

reduction of officer admin time. A simple SMS reminder when council tax bills were due created £66k of 

savings instantly through reduced demand, postage and administration. 

 

For officers, digital solutions offer opportunities to deliver services more efficiently. A high-level 

opportunities assessment has identified savings from reducing demand and reducing time spent by 

officers undertaking processing and administration activities. A proof of concept for this is outlined below 

through evidencing the impact of digitisation of the green waste permit renewal process. This 

demonstrates potential savings of approximately £50,000 for just one process. 

 

Page 41



 

 26 

 
  

 
 
 
Benefits  
 

▪ Reduce demand to enable more complex issues to be resolved  

▪ Provide a channel of choice for residents  

▪ Use the data captured to continuously improve our services  

▪ Reduce administrative costs and create efficiencies in back office  

▪ Reduce the length of time to deliver a service 

 

Page 42



 

 27 

Savings 

Savings opportunities across the customer programme come from economies of scale and transformation 

to reduce failure demand. All demand reduction is based on a low target of 25% and high target of 50%.  

 

 Target Low Target High 

Customer Services Integration £400,000 £800,000 

Customer Insight – chasing a 

call back 

£85,750 £171,500 

Customer Insight – progress 

chasing a service request 

£96,750 £193,500 

Delivering Proactive Customer 

Services – Reduction in F2F  

£107,500 £215,000 

Digital Customer Services – 

reducing demand 

£139,500 £279,000 

Digital Customer services – 

Automating end to end 

customer journey  

£1,000,000 £2,000,000 

Digital Customer services – 

transition to paperless 

£666,000 £1,000,000 

Total £2,495,500 £4,659,000 

 

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings £582,500 £1,746,500 £1,166,500 £3,495,500 

Investment 

(recurring) 

(£290,000) (£260,000)  (£550,000) 

Net £292,500 £1,486,500 £1,166,500 £2,945,500 

 

 
 

  

Page 43



 

 28 

Best Use of Resources 
 

By reorganising our structures, reducing bureaucracy and better managing our internal demand, we 

can create clearer career pathways for our staff, a better employee experience and make savings of: 

£1.975m 

Low 

£3.25m 

High 

 

 

Streamlined Operating Framework 

 
A leaner operating framework will streamline processes, make it easier for council staff to get things done 

for customers and strip out unnecessary bureaucracy.  This will be achieved through a combination of 

raising approval thresholds (such as procurement thresholds), stripping out wasteful activity, empowering 

staff closest to customers to take appropriate action and taking a risk-based approach to decision making. 

In order to avoid double-counting savings with other efficiency measures proposed in the business case 

(such as the creation of the Transactions Hub and move to self-service), we have not attached specific 

additional savings to the operating framework.  However, in similar sized authorities this has saved up to 

£150k through eliminating wasteful processes.  Productivity savings released by the new operating 

framework will support the delivery of cashable savings in other workstreams. 

 

Benefits 

▪ Reducing bureaucracy and making it easier to get things done for residents 

▪ Making better use of resources, focusing more efforts on value-adding activity 

▪ Empowering staff to do more within a more agile and trusting operating culture 

▪ Enabling the delivery of cashable savings across other workstreams 

▪ Making the council an attractive place to work 

 

Page 44



 

 29 

Creating Centres of Excellence 

 

An analysis of the council’s workforce showed that some of our resources are fragmented and could be 

organised more efficiently.  There are pockets of staff in service areas involved in activities like Finance, 

ICT and Business Support who could be brought together into corporate centres of excellence.  This will 

allow us to make efficiencies through economies of scale, while building clearer career pathways and 

better career opportunities for staff, based on the nature of their work. 

 

 
 

There are around 500 staff in the council in administrative roles, spread across different teams.  The total 

cost of this resource is around £15.5m.  By bringing these staff together into a Corporate Business Support 

function, the council can save between £1.5m and £2.3m through economies of scale, while creating 

clearer career pathways for support staff and reducing the cost of providing services for taxpayers. 

 

The typical administrative role involves a wide variety of tasks, ranging from answering routine queries 

from customers to transactional finance activities such as ordering, receipting and paying invoices.  In our 

new model, we will separate out general administrative tasks from Finance, HR and ICT related tasks and 

organise work into different teams based on the nature of work being undertaken. 

 

The most common challenge to implementing this kind of model is isolating the different parts of 

someone’s job in order to bring these together with other people doing similar tasks – often called finding 

‘arms and legs’.  However, as we have identified more than 500 people in administrative roles, it will be 

possible to reorganise these staff into teams of whole individuals dedicated to common tasks.  In addition 

to saving the council money and being more efficient, this will allow staff in scope to build up specialisms. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

 30 

Our new operating framework and modernisations to 

our ICT will further reduce the need for traditional 

administrative tasks to be undertaken at all, ensuring 

that more staff time is freed up for value-adding 

activities and more public money is spent directly on 

public services. 

The first stage in the transformation will be to bring 

together teams based on the most common tasks and 

processes they are undertaking and make savings 

through economies of scale and a reduction in 

management posts.  Once the new service has been 

established and tested, a further phase of 

transformation will eliminate duplication, reduce 

bureaucracy and automate processes to deliver 

additional savings. 

 

Other corporate services teams will be organised under a new operating model, providing clarity and 

consistency to the level of support provided to frontline services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 
1 

Adapted Ulrich Model 

Staff in these roles will remain within their respective services (e.g. Finance, HR, ICT), with the exception 

of Transactional Services teams who will form part of a new Employee Services and Transactions Hub. 

Common Administrative Tasks at NCC 

▪ Filing 

▪ Photocopying 

▪ Handling post 

▪ Sending and receiving faxes 

▪ Laminating and binding 

▪ Arranging meetings 

▪ Booking rooms, hospitality and travel 

▪ Telephone enquiries 

▪ Meeting visitors 

▪ Minute taking 

▪ Clerical and typing services 

▪ Data entry 

▪ Handling cheques and petty cash 

▪ ‘General’ office support 

Page 46



 

 31 

 

▪ Business Partners will provide strategic advice and planning services to the senior management teams 

in each department.  Finance, HR and ICT Business Partners will work together with the management 

teams they support to develop department business plans for each area. 

▪ Centres of Expertise include deep subject matter experts in technical disciplines such as Management 

Accountancy, Employee Relations and Digital Service Design. 

▪ Performance & Insight teams support planning and performance both for the services they directly 

support (Finance, HR, ICT) and the wider council.  This will include providing workforce, spend and 

customer data to support corporate and departmental plans. 

▪ Transactional Services brings together staff involved in delivering the council’s highest volume 

processes into a shared Transactions Hub and Employee Service Centre. 

 

Work on this reorganisation will begin with a series of service reviews of Finance, HR and ICT to prepare 

services for the transition to the centre of excellence model.  This will take place as soon as the business 

case is approved so that support services are in a strong position to support the rest of the organisation 

through change. 

 

Savings: Corporate Business Support 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings - £1,500,000 - £1,500,000 

 

 

Savings: Other Professional Specialisms 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings - £250,000 £125,000 £375,000 

 

Page 47



 

 32 

Employee Service Centre and Transactions Hub 

 

The cost of administrating the council’s high volume internal processes is around £4.5m a year, excluding 

ICT and the costs of supplies such as printing, postage and stationery.  This includes services to employees 

such as payroll, HR transactions, transactional purchasing and common ICT requests. 

 

Some services, such as ICT, already operate an internal 

customer service desk model, whereas requests in other 

areas often go directly to named individuals who are 

‘known for knowing’ the answers.  This means that 

higher skilled, and usually higher paid, professionals are 

often spending large amounts of time dealing with a 

high volume of low level, routine requests. 

A new Employee Service Centre will provide a single 

access point for routine requests for Finance, HR, ICT 

and Procurement support.  Fulfilling these requests and 

other transactional processes will be made more 

efficient and cost-effective by a new Transactions Hub. 

 

 

 

 

Over time, we will make it easier for employees and managers to self-service by providing better 

information, self-help guides and resources on our intranet.  We will build more digital services to replace 

manual ones, involving users in designing services that will make their working lives easier.  We will 

automate processes to reduce the need for manual intervention and reduce the cost of administration.  

This will be supported by the introduction of a new Service Desk Management Tool. 

Common Transactional Requests 

▪ Starters / leavers 

▪ Employment contracts 

▪ DBS checks 

▪ Payroll setup 

▪ Payslip queries 

▪ New ICT accounts 

▪ New ICT devices 

▪ Password reset / log-on error 

▪ ICT user support and guidance 

▪ Supplier setup 

▪ Invoice processing 

Page 48



 

 33 

 

Savings 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings - £225,000 £112,500 £337,500 

 

 

Other Benefits 

▪ Improved customer service for internal users (Members and employees) 

▪ Empowering staff to resolve issues quicker 

▪ Reducing the operational burden on support services teams 

▪ Freeing up time for more value-adding and strategic activity 

▪ Reducing the cost per transaction 

▪ More efficient use of public money, with less spent on back office costs 

Page 49



 

 34 

Best Use of Assets  
 

By better managing our assets through a corporate landlord approach we will reduce the size of our 

property estate to deliver capital receipts and reduce how much we spend on maintaining buildings.   

A better approach to facilities management and planned maintenance will make savings of: 

£255,000 

Low 

£255,000 

High 

 

Estates Review 

The Council has just completed a high-level review of Property Services to assess the current position, 

what has been achieved to date and identify key strategic and operational priorities going forwards.  

 

The review identified the overall scale of the Property Estate: 

 
 

A more integrated vision for corporate landlord would achieve significant benefits for the council.  

The approach to achieving this is set out below. 

State of the Estate | Overview of Our Assets

Asset Value: £900m
Land and Buildings: £545m

Council Houses: £355m

Reactive Maintenance budget:

£1.1m

Annual Utilities Costs: £xxm

(ex. schools and housing)

Rental Revenue

Income:

£639k
Note 64.5% proportion of 

agreements are Peppercorn 

Rent (£nil value)

Planned Preventative Maintenance: 

£1.78m budget

Total Backlog* Maintenance: 

£9.6m
(known based on completed 

condition survey) 

1,892

323
Operational assets 

with buildings

separate land 

and building 

assets

Footprint 4915 hectares 

* As at 2018 excluding schools

Page 50



 

 35 

 
 

The council is part way to achieving a corporate landlord approach but there is the need for a greater level 

of integration.  A review of current asset base would suggest that there is significant scope, given that:  

 

▪ Only 44 out of 343 operational sites are managed by corporate landlord  

▪ There was £9.6m of backlog maintenance as of 2018 with no overarching strategic plan to complete  

▪ A review of external spend has highlighted 348 suppliers used for repairs and maintenance and a total 

spend £3.455m. This is despite the repairs and statutory maintenance budget managed by Property 

totalling £2.9m. This suggests there are a number of budgets which remain outside of the control of 

Property. This review also highlighted 275 cost centres, again suggesting delegated spend 

▪ Land and Buildings owned by the council have an asset value of £545m evidencing a sizable 

opportunity to reduce asset holdings 

 

A detailed business case will identify the scale of financial benefits. High level analysis suggests that: 

 

▪ Asset rationalisation to release capital receipts could deliver savings of at least 10% 

• Rationalisation of office accommodation of around 30% 

• There is opportunity to reduce the £9.6m in backlog maintenance 

• Better use of community assets where there are multiple assets within the community  

▪ Associated savings across facilities management and energy due to the rationalisation of properties 

▪ Opportunity to improve return on commercial portfolio 

 

Page 51



 

 36 

Integrated Services 

 
Integrated Services is split in to three distinct functions including:  

▪ Facilities Management  

▪ Statutory and Planned Maintenance 

▪ Capital Delivery 

The below outline the recommendations for Facilities Management: 

▪ Through a corporate landlord model the council will best deliver overall building management. 

▪ The service should review the current cost model for cleaning to confirm value for money and full cost 

recovery. Depending on the outcome of this review, consideration could be given to alternative 

delivery models which may offer improved value. 

▪ A decision should be taken on the location of the Housing DLO, with consideration given to the 

transfer of this function to the housing team. An assessment should be taken regarding the insourcing 

of some repairs/compliance tasks performed on operational assets and whether this could be line 

managed by the Housing DLO team to ensure scale and overall efficiency. 

 

 

Savings 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Building 

Management  

£100,000 - - £100,000 

Cleaning Cost 

Model 

£105,000 - - £105,000 

Housing DLO £50,000 - - £50,000 

Total £255,000 - - £255,000 

 

 

Page 52



 

 37 

Best Use of Technology 
 

By investing in our ability to design and build our own technology solutions, we will reduce the 

complexity of our technical architecture and make savings of: 

£500k 

Low 

£1m 

High 

 

Streamlined Technical Architecture 

 

Like many local authorities, the council uses many different ICT systems and this has grown over time into 

a complex technical architecture costing around £6m a year.  Different departments have contracts with 

the same ICT suppliers and, even where different systems are used, there is duplication of functionality. 

 

The council has had success in building system functionality in-house using existing software platforms.  

The typical payback period for building, rather than buying, new software applications is 2.5 years, 

meaning the council avoids any ongoing licence costs after the second year of an application’s lifetime.  

Operating this business model will also create opportunities for staff in ICT & Digital Services that will help 

to attract, retain and develop talent in Northumberland. 

 

A radically streamlined technical architecture will consolidate the council’s business processes onto three 

main platforms, eliminating the need for several hundred other applications and making the council’s 

technology estate cheaper and easier to manage. The council’s future technical architecture will comprise: 

 

▪ A core suite of productivity applications, which are the day-to-day software applications used by staff 

and Members.  The council has selected Microsoft 365 as its productivity platform. 

 

▪ An Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system that fulfils core business processes for Finance and HR.  

The council’s ERP solution is Oracle Fusion.  An options appraisal during the next phase of work will 

determine whether this is the right solution for the council going forward and/or what level of 

investment is required to support the council of the future. 

 

▪ A digital service engine that is used to make council services available, accessible and easy to use for 

customers, supported by a single customer case management system that brings together in one 

place customer journeys and customer data that is currently spread across many different systems.  

This solution is currently Digital Place (by Place Cube).  In the future, we will provide most digital 

services via a single platform, with a small number of genuinely specialist systems used to deliver 

requirements that cannot be fulfilled by the core platform. 

Page 53



 

 38 

 

By investing our own digital design and build capability, we will reduce the council’s expenditure on ICT 

licences, support and maintenance by 10% by the end of Year 3 of the programme.  This will be enabled 

by a Technical Design Authority, which will provide governance for the council’s technical architecture 

and ensure savings are delivered.  Similar arrangements in other authorities have allowed councils to 

deliver £300k of savings each year over the first 5 years of their rationalisation programme, with a target 

to further reduce the number of applications by 10% over the next 4 years. 

 

A streamlined set of applications and information management systems will also simplify the council’s 

information architecture.  This will provide a more consistent approach to storing documents, data and 

information and make it easier to extract key information such as performance data, on demand. 

 

Initial investment will be made in external support to establish the Technical Design Authority, map our 

current applications estate and work with the ICT & Digital Services Leadership Team to develop a future 

technology roadmap and applications rationalisation programme.  Investment in additional design and 

build capability is reflected in the savings and investments profile in the Best Service to Customers chapter. 

 

Savings 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Savings  £300,000 £300,000 £600,000 

Figure 2 Target Technical Architecture 

Page 54



 

 39 

Modern Work Tools 

 

Enterprise Resource Planning 

There are mixed views on the suitability of the council’s ‘Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)’ system, 

which supports many of the council’s core processes in Finance and HR like budget management and payroll.  

Replacing systems of this scale is expensive and any business case to do so would need to be clear that 

the gains in efficiency outweigh the costs.  A detailed options appraisal will assess the user requirements 

and current costs of the system and compare these to the options available in the market today. 

 

Service Desk Management Tool 

The ICT Service Desk receives a large volume of requests for routine services (e.g. new starters setup) and 

as a result of incidents (where something isn’t working or a user can’t do something).    There are around 

47,000 requests and incidents reported to the service desk each year, an average of 9.8 per user.  Although 

this benchmarks only slightly higher than the national average for local authorities of 9.3 requests and 

incidents per user, the national data is influenced by some extreme statistical outliers.  We also know that 

Northumberland’s figures represent a minimum position, as not all requests are recorded and will 

sometimes bypass the service desk and be made directly to certain colleagues. 

 

 

Page 55



 

 40 

Demand is split roughly 50:50 between 

routine service requests and incidents.  

Because incidents are unplanned, it is 

difficult to anticipate demand and for 

the ICT Service to plan resources 

accordingly.  Improving the level of self-

service and automation available for 

both requests and incidents will 

significantly reduce demand on the 

service and create capacity for more 

value-adding activity. 

 

An equivalent level of information is not available for demand on Finance and HR services.  Estimating this 

demand conservatively, we have assumed the combined demand on Finance and HR to be equivalent to 

the volume of service requests (excluding incidents) into ICT.  This equates to around 70,000 transactional 

requests into these three support services each year. 

 

A new service management tool will maximise the ability of staff to self-serve for these routine requests. 

It will automate common processes and enhance the quality of data available on volumes, types and 

trends of demand to allow us to plan our resources more effectively and drive further efficiency savings. 

 

By shifting 1 in 4 requests to self-service, we will make it easier for staff to help themselves and eliminate 

around 17,000 routine requests a year into support services teams.  Based on the average cost per contact 

in ICT of £6, this will save the council more than £100,000 across ICT, HR and Finance.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Shift to Self Service

ESC Self Service
Figure 3 Volume of requests into support services; target to move 25% to self-service 

Page 56



 

 41 

Smarter Procurement and Device Management 

The council’s processes for ordering, configuring and deploying devices to users are outdated – in short, 

it takes people longer to get their IT equipment sent out, set up and working than it should.  There are 

security risks with the way new user accounts and passwords are set up and issued, and the process of 

providing new equipment and accounts takes more time and resource from the ICT team than is necessary. 

By maximising the benefits of cloud services (such as Windows Autopilot), we will simplify the process of 

deploying, managing and retiring devices for both users and the ICT team, increasing efficiency and 

reducing costs. By pre-configuring new devices using a series of templates matched to user needs, we will: 

 

▪ Speed up the time it takes to get new users set up and running, increasing the council’s productivity 

▪ Reduce the time ICT spends setting up, deploying, managing and retiring equipment 

▪ Reduce the infrastructure (and costs) required to manage and maintain ICT equipment 

▪ Make ICT equipment easier to use and easier to fix for users 

 

 

 

Figure 4 Target ICT Device Lifecycle using Windows Autopilot 

Page 57



 

 42 

Line of Business Applications 

At the same time as making a strategic change in our use of technology, we need to make investments 

and improvements to several line of business applications.  These tactical changes will ensure that 

customers can continue to access services, while we look to consolidate digital services and customer case 

management onto a single platform.  A number these business cases have already been approved for 

investment from the Transformation Fund.  These are included below for completeness, alongside new 

investments we need to make to assess the available technology solutions against our future needs. 

 

Investments 

  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Productivity Microsoft 365 E5   (£394,715) (£394,715) 

Customer 

Management 

iCasework (£116,500) (£45,000) (£45,000) (£206,500) 

Fix My Street (£50,000) (£38,000) (£38,000) (£126,000) 

Enterprise 

Management 

ERP Options Appraisal (£70,000)   (£70,000) 

Service Desk Solution (£30,000) (£150,000)  (£180,000) 

Total (£266,500) (£233,000) (£477,715) (£977,215) 

 

 

Delivering Transformation through Technology 

 

Delivering the transformational change set out in this business case will require a modern, strategic ICT & 

Digital Service with greater capacity to drive and enable change.  This will require access to skills that the 

council has historically struggled to recruit.  A reorganisation of ICT & Digital Services will create the 

capacity and capability the council needs to deliver change.  A new set of job descriptions for Digital, Data 

and Technology (DDaT) roles, aligned to the national framework for these skills, will ensure that ICT & 

Digital professionals nationally understand and recognise the roles we are offering and opportunities 

working at Northumberland offers. Recruitment will be supported by a new recruitment strategy and 

‘employer value proposition’ to ensure that we attract and retain the best talent. 

 

Page 58



 

 43 

Best Talent and Opportunities 
 

By transforming our workforce to reflect the needs of a modern local authority, we will support the 

implementation of this business case and be best placed to deliver the council’s strategic priorities.   

We will simplify our current, complicated organisational structure and create opportunities that attract 

the best talent to work at Northumberland and give people great reasons to stay. 

 

Workforce Blueprint 

 
The council has more than 1,000 separate job descriptions, many of which cover very similar requirements 

but have been written by different managers at different points in time.  In many cases these were written 

more than 10 years ago and have had minor updates but have not had the major refresh required to 

reflect the council’s current context or workforce needs. 

 

Our new workforce blueprint will rationalise our 1,000+ job descriptions down to around 150 role profiles, 

grouped into ‘job families’. 

 

 
 

A job family is a group of positions that involve work in the same profession or occupation and have similar 

skills requirements.  The job family structure is based on the roles that people perform and what those 

roles have in common, not on organisational structure.  This is often better for staff because development 

and career progression is most often seen within job families.  The job family model does not require staff 

to move out of the departments they currently work in, but provides clearer career pathways as part of a 

community of common professional practice. 

 

The new workforce blueprint will also identify new roles and skills that the council has not had before, 

including: 

 

▪ User Researchers, who can understand customer needs and turn these into accessible digital services 

that are so good, people prefer to use them 

Page 59



 

 44 

▪ Service Designers, not just for digital services but drawing on principles from Design Thinking to 

develop new and innovate models for customers, in line with our new Service Design Framework 

▪ Multi-skilled Community Professionals, putting more holistic support around individuals, families and 

communities, in line with our Communities First approach 

 

Leadership Framework 
 

The Council have made significant investment in establishing and embedding a leadership development 

programme 'The Living Leader'. This is a reputable programme proven to encourage healthy leadership 

behaviours; positive, authentic role modelling; and is designed to develop and support staff in all aspects 

of their professional and personal lives.  

 

A number of participants have experienced the Living Leader Personal Leadership Programme (PLP) 

directly delivered by a Living Leader associate. Of this group, participants have themselves been 

progressed to the Certified Trainer Programme (CTP) in order to deliver the training within the Council. 

There are currently 7 trainers qualified to deliver the training in-house and further investment has been 

committed to expand this group by a further 6 trainers. This presents an opportunity to be self-sufficient 

in terms of rolling out the programme and ensures the council has the capacity to reach as many of its 

employees as possible, minimising the common constraint of costs associated with external delivery. 

Delivering the training internally using a network of trained trainers also contextualises the training to the 

NCC environment and increases the likelihood of positively influencing culture. The programme has been 

very well received by those that have participated and this has served to increase the demand for future 

sessions of the programme.  

 

The Senior Leadership team have experienced the training as delivered by a Living Leader provider. 500 

licenses have been purchased for the CTP trainers to deliver training to the rest of the workforce with the 

possibility of purchase of further licenses.  

 

Topical leadership management sessions based on Living Leader philosophies are coordinated and 

delivered to senior managers by the CTP trainers who act as cultural custodians and champions of good 

leadership. These sessions underpin the original training and are intended to build on knowledge and lived 

experience and keep the Living Leader message alive. 

 

Investments 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Training (£10,000)    

Leadership Framework     

Leadership Programme     

Total (£10,000)    

 

Page 60



 

 45 

 

Employer Value Proposition 

 

Recruitment and retention have been a challenge for the council and for the majority organisations, across 

most sectors in the UK due to the impact of COVID, increased competition, low unemployment, and 

changes in candidate expectations. 

 

A new, evidence-based Employee Value Proposition (EVP) will help us to attract the best talent, locally 

and nationally and give people reasons to stay.  Work has already begun on this as part of the council’s 

future workforce planning and is supported by improvements to our candidate experience including 

investments in technology. 

 

We have completed a series of employee workshops across a variety of service areas so that we fully 

understand what motivates our colleagues to join and stay.  In turn this will help us to develop a messaging 

framework that we can use to communicate effectively with our target audience - what we can promise 

them when joining NCC, how it feels to work for NCC and why they should join us. 

 

With only around 20% of leading UK employers having a defined and relevant EVP (or ‘People Deal’), 

completing this project for NCC will give us a competitive advantage.  We will use this to inform the NCC 

employer brand and bring it to life by creating relevant and engaging content using our own people. 

 

We have also been undergoing a recruitment marketing pilot across multiple platforms. The data from 

this pilot will inform investment decisions for 2023 and beyond as to which platforms are most effective 

to get our message to our target audience and to attract the right kind of people into the organisation  

 

Investments 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Careers Site (£50,000)   (£50,000) 

Tribepad (£48,730) (£33,430) (£33,430) (£115,590) 

     

Total    (£165,590) 

 

 

 
 

Page 61



 

 46 

Savings and Investment Case 
 

The total savings available from the delivery of this business case are in the range of: 

£17.9m 

Low 

£38.2m 

High 

 

Savings Summary 

 
We have modelled all savings opportunities across a range of low to high.  Figures given within each 

chapter and in the table below are either at the low or mid-point of the savings range, in order to ensure 

the realism and deliverability of savings.  However, we know that other authorities have been able to 

achieve the high end savings figures and so there is potential for the council to significantly over-deliver 

on the proposed savings. 

 

By implementing the initiatives identified in this business case, the council can achieve the following savings 

(all figures in £000s, cashable savings only, with MTFP growth investments, excluding one-off investments): 

 

Recurring Savings Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Best Value for Money 1,352 4,343 2,187 7,883 

Best in Class Commissioning 500 2,516 2,016 5,033 

Best Service to Customers 582 1,746 1,166 3,495 

Best Use of Resources - 1,975 237 2,212 

Best Use of Assets 255 - - 255 

Best Use of Technology - 300 300 600 

Gross Total    19,479 

Recurring Investments 

Communities First - (439) - (439) 

Home to School Transport (200) (50)  (250) 

Category Management (150) (150) - (300) 

Digital Service Design (290) (260) - (550) 

Investments Total - - - (1,539) 

Net Savings Total    17,940 

 
By the end of Year 3, the council will be spending at least £17.9m less per year than it is today. 
 
This could be as high as £38.5m if the council achieves the stretch targets within this business case. 

Page 62



 

 47 

 

Investment Summary 

 

To achieve the benefits set out in the business case, the council will need to invest the following in the 
following one-off transformation costs (all figures in £000s): 
 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

People    1,412 

Programme Management 221 295 295 812 

HR and Change – Backfill 200 200 200 600 

Technology 265 116 511 1,043 

Careers Site 50   50 

Tribepad Recruitment App 49 33 33 116 

iCasework Case Management 116 45 45 206 

Office 365   395 395 

Fix My Street Application 50 38 38 126 

Service Desk Solution  150  150 

Commissioned Support    5,165 

PMO Support 96 96 48 240 

Best Value for Money 907 1,045 23 1,975 

Best in Class Commissioning 415   415 

Best Service to Customers 672 293  965 

Best Use of Resources 320 205  525 

Best Use of Assets     

Best Use of Technology 360   360 

Best Talent and Opportunities 525 160  685 

Call-Off Fund     

Total    7,620 

 
In addition to this, council will need to invest in the following ongoing costs in order to provide services 
in a different way that costs less.  These figures have been accounted for in the net savings table on the 
page above and do not require funding from the Transformation Fund. 
 

Service Investments Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Shift to Community Provision - 439 - 439 

Home to School Transport 200 50  250 

Category Management 150 150 - 300 

Digital Service Design 290 260 - 550 

Total 640 899 - 1,539 

Page 63



 

 48 

Departments have also made savings proposals as part of the MTFP process.  £3.7m of potential overlap 

between the strategic business case and other MTFP proposals has been identified. 

 

 
 
Based on this, the combined savings proposals from strategic change and departmental proposals reach 

a total of £52m.  This is after any overlap that has been identified between the two sets of proposals. 

Page 64



 

 49 

Programme Delivery Model 
 
The first phase of the programme had a set of Discovery Workstreams, which were shaped around our 

key lines of enquiry to identify opportunities for change.  Now that this phase is complete, the 

recommendations of the business case lend themselves to a new set of Delivery Workstreams, which will 

be used to organise work in the next phase.  These are: 

 

Delivery Workstream Overview Savings 

Best Value Services 
A series of reviews across high cost, high demand 
services will build on the opportunities identified from 
work so far to deliver modern, cost-effective services 

£7.6m - £8.2m 

Best Use of Resources 

A new approach to planning and performance, 
supported by a streamlined operating framework with 
less bureaucracy, better managing internal demand and 
reorganising staff into functional centres of excellence 

£1.9m - £3.2m 

Best in Class Commissioning 

A new approach to commissioning and procurement 
will improve the quality of public services, involve more 
people in how they are designed and delivered, and 
manage our spend with suppliers more commercially 

£5 - £21m 

Best Service to Customers 

Redesigning our customer access model to change the 
way customers interact with our services, make better 
use of the data we gather, deliver a more proactive 
service and make the best use of digital services 

£3.5m - £4.65m 

Best Use of Technology 
Investing in our ability to design and build our own 
technology solutions and reducing the number and 
complexity of our ICT systems 

Up to £1m 

Best Use of Assets 
Assessing the impact of managing our assets better 
through a corporate landlord approach and a better 
approach to facilities management  

£0.255m 

Best Talent and Opportunities 
Transforming our workforce to reflect the needs of a 
modern local authority 

- 

 
Each workstream will be assigned an Executive Team Sponsor and a Workstream Lead.  This will build on 

the success of cross-council working and collaboration in phase 1 of the programme, where workstream 

leads were supported by the Improvement & Innovation Team and external partners to identify 

opportunities for savings and improvement. 

Page 65



 

 50 

The programme will be delivered by the following cross-council programme team, drawing on additional 

capacity and capability from external consultancy partners where the council has gaps in resourcing: 

 

 
 

Page 66



 

 51 

Risk Management 
 
Risk management for the strategic change programme uses NCCs risk scoring matrix. The risk register 
identifies seven strategic risks for programme delivery. 
 

Risk Impact Type Impacts Likelihood Impact Current 
Risk 

Score 

1a) There is a risk to programme 
resources due to the collective change 
programmes being delivered at the 
same time across the Council (i.e. 
Leveraging on internal staff for 
Strategic Change Programme plus: 
Governance Review Programme and 
Inequalities programme) 

Programme 
and Project 
Delivery Risk 

Resource Availability 
Impact for Delivery: 
Service and Subject 
Matter Expert 
resource availability 
to support / advise / 
deliver change for 
the programme 
 
Delays to 
implementation and 
failure to meet 
programme and 
supporting project 
timelines 

C 3 C3 

1b) There is a risk to programme 
delivery timelines due to the collective 
change programmes being delivered 
at the same time across the Council 
(i.e. Leveraging on internal staff for 
strategic change programme plus: 
governance review programme and 
inequalities programme) 

Programme 
and Project 
Delivery Risk 

Delays to 
implementation and 
failure to meet 
programme and 
supporting project 
timelines 

C 3 C3 

2) There is a risk to the programme 
due to imminent organisational 
restructure following the Caller Report 
(Tiers 1,2 and 3 Structure) 

"Programme 
and Project 
Delivery Risk 
Resource 
Risk" 

Delays to executive 
sign off of 
programme 
decisions  
 
Delays to resource 
allocation and or 
specialist advice for 
workstreams 

B 3 B3 

Page 67

https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:x:/s/Transformationprogramme-PMOSupport/EX_e_VPicZJJqIgSGoK9FjQBGQCax4V_NFQ5G3GIclhTHA?email=Matthew.Baker%40northumberland.gov.uk&e=DxQFK9


 

 52 

3) There is a risk of scope creep to 
strategic change programme due to 
size and scale of the programme and 
the volume of supporting projects 

Programme 
and Project 
Delivery Risk 

Delays to 
programme delivery 
timescales 
 
Adverse impact on 
programme budget 
 
Potential delays to 
benefits realisation 

C 4 C4 

4) There is a resource risk to the 
programme, stemming from market 
forces linked to recruitment and 
council reputational damage from the 
Caller Report and S114 Notice 

Programme 
and Project 
Delivery Risk 

Inability to recruit 
staff to backfill roles 
 
Inability to recruit 
staff into specialist 
roles required for 
the programme 
 
Adverse impact on 
programme budget 

C 3 C3 

5) There is a risk to programme 
delivery due to the lack of clear 
processes/procedures/criteria for the 
evaluation and consideration of 
business cases. 

Programme 
and Project 
Delivery Risk 

Delays to the 
programme plan  
 
Delays to the 
identification and 
realisation of 
programme benefit 

C 4 C4 

6) There is a risk that staff and 
stakeholders will not engage in the 
programme or support the 
programme objectives 

Reputation 
Programme 
and Project 
Delivery Risk 

Delays to the 
programme plan  
 
Stakeholder 
negative perception 
of the programme 
and its aims 

C 4 C4 

 
 
  

Page 68



5 January 2023 

 
 
 

Northumberland County Council  
 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Work Programme and Monitoring Report 2022-2023 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sean Nicholson: 01670 622605 – Sean.Nicholson@northumberland.gov.uk 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 6



5 January 2023 

1. Terms of reference: 
  

(1) To maintain an overview of the Council’s Annual Budget and Budgetary Management via the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
(2) To review the state of Northumberland and the County Council’s activity in delivering its Corporate Plan. 

 
(3) To maintain an overview of the Council’s performance management arrangements; highlighting areas of poor performance 

and monitoring recovery delivery plans. 

 
(4) To maintain an overview of the Management Agreements in place between the Council and Advance Northumberland. 

 
(5) To monitor, review and make recommendations about: 

 
• Corporate Services: Organisational Development, Health and Safety, ICT Strategy, Corporate Governance, Financial 

Services, Procurement Strategy, Risk Strategy, Shared and Traded Services  
• Partnership development coordination with local organisations 
• Relationships with external bodies  
• Regeneration and Economic Development  
• Strategic Transport Network and Infrastructure  
• Employability, Skills, and removing barriers to work  
• Capital Programme and Asset Management  
• Support to VCS organisations and the Council’s relationship with town and parish councils.  
  

  

P
age 70



5 January 2023 

 
Northumberland County Council 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2022-2023 
 

 
13 February 2023 

 
Budget 2023/24 
 

To invite members of all four OSCs to comment on the budget proposals for 2023/24. 

 
13 March 2023 

 
Advance Northumberland To receive an annual update on Advance Northumberland’s operations. 

 
 
3 April 2023 

 
 
 

 

 
  

P
age 71



5 January 2023 

 

Northumberland County Council 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monitoring Report 2022-2023 

Ref Date Report Decision Outcome 

1. 11 July 2022 Annual Workforce Report RESOLVED members agreed to note and support the 
recommendations in the report.  

The Committee will continue to 
receive annual updates. 

2. 11 July 2022 Debt Recovery Update RESOLVED that the information in the report be noted. A further update will be presented to 

the Committee in December. 

3. 11 July 2022 Green Homes Grant RESOLVED that the information be noted. No further action required at this 

stage. 

4. 11 July 2022 Advance Northumberland 
Ltd and its subsidiaries–
Request for Reserved Matter 
Approval 

RESOLVED to advise the Cabinet that it supported the 
recommendations contained in the report on the 
condition the following are included:   
   

1. With regards to the Shareholder Representative 
Role Profile, the wording be amended to provide 
greater clarity on the role the Shareholder 
Representative should carry out at board meetings.  
Members suggested the wordings to be:  

    
iii. To attend and play an active role at 
board meetings of the Company whilst 
recognising the authority to make decisions lies 
with the board of the Company.   
   

2. The Committee would like a further report in 6 
months, if appropriate, to review the implementation 
of the proposed new Articles of Association and the 
Shareholder Representative Role Profile.  

Cabinet approved the comments 

made by the OSC when it determined 

the report on 12 July 2022. 

P
age 72



5 January 2023 

5. 11 July 2022 Trading Companies’ 
Financial Performance 2021-
22 – End of March 

RESOLVED that the report be noted. The Committee will continue to 

receive quarterly updates. 

6. 10 October 2022 Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2023/24 

RESOLVED that the recommendations be supported. Cabinet considered the Committee’s 

comments when it determined the 

report on 11 October 2022. 

7. 10 October 2022 Broadband Connectivity RESOLVED that the information in the report be noted. The Committee will continue to 

monitor this issue as appropriate. 

8. 10 October 2022 Budget Consultation RESOLVED that the information be noted and 
suggestions be examined for inclusion in the Budget 
Consultation 2022/23. 

The Committee will receive details of 

the outcome of the consultation as 

part of the budget setting process in 

February. 

9. 10 October 2022 Covid Grants and Financial 
Assistance to Business 

RESOLVED that the information in the report be noted. 
 

No further action required at this 

stage. 

10. 10 October 2022 Trading Companies’ 
Financial Performance 

RESOLVED that the information in the report be noted 
 

The Committee will continue to 

receive quarterly updates. 

11. 12 December 2022 Budget 2023-24 and MTFP 
2023-27 

RESOLVED that the information in the report be noted. The Committee consider the budget 

proposal in February. 

12. 12 December 2022 Council-owned Company 
Governance Framework 

RESOLVED to advise the Cabinet that it supported the 
recommendations contained in the report, subject to 
consideration of the issues highlighted. 

The Cabinet considered the 

Committee’s views prior to 

determination of the report. 

13. 12 December 2022 Debt Recovery Update RESOLVED that the report be noted. The Committee will continue to 

receive regular updates. 

14. 12 December 2022 Economic Development RESOLVED that the report be noted. The Committee will continue to 

receive regular updates. 

 
 
 

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
	Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
	Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

	2 MINUTES
	4 FORWARD PLAN
	5 STRATEGIC CHANGE BUSINESS PLAN
	05.1 Strategic Business Case - 221221 (2) (1)
	Context and Drivers for Change
	Our Strategic Business Case for a Better Northumberland
	Best Value for Money
	Planning, Performance and Accountability Framework
	Service Reviews
	Community Based Service Provision

	Best in Class Commissioning
	Commissioning Framework
	Spend with Third Parties
	Category Management

	Best Service to Customers
	Customer Target Access Model and Strategy
	Customer Services Integration and Improvement
	Customer Insight
	Delivering Proactive Customer Services
	Digital Customer Services

	Best Use of Resources
	Streamlined Operating Framework
	Creating Centres of Excellence
	Employee Service Centre and Transactions Hub

	Best Use of Assets
	Estates Review
	Integrated Services

	Best Use of Technology
	Streamlined Technical Architecture
	Modern Work Tools
	Delivering Transformation through Technology

	Best Talent and Opportunities
	Workforce Blueprint
	Leadership Framework
	Employer Value Proposition

	Savings and Investment Case
	Savings Summary
	Investment Summary

	Programme Delivery Model
	Risk Management


	6 WORK PROGRAMME
	9 TRADING COMPANIES FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

